
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

AGENDA 
FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 
Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 
March 7th, 2012 

2:00 p.m. 
 

 
  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
  2-REPORTS 

Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 
 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB V  Minutes of February 8th, 2012 Budget Work Session – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB W  Minutes of February 15th, 2012 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB X  Minutes of February 22nd, 2012 Joint Budget Work Session w/School Board - Mary Weaver, Clerk to the  

Board of Supervisors 
TAB YZ Ratify and accept the Virginia E-911 Service Board Wireless Education Program for FY 13 – Patricia A.  

Groot, Grants Administrator 
TAB A  Ratify and accept the Virginia E-911 Service Board PSAP Grant Program for FY 13 – Patricia A. Groot,  

Grant Administrator 
TAB B  FY12 Budget Supplement for Schools – Gena Keller, School Superintendent 
 
    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
TAB C  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
 
   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 
 

   7-ACTION MATTERS 
TAB D  Community Wellness Program at the Carysbrook Fitness Center – Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and  

Recreation 
TAB E  Reappointment/Fluvanna Partnership for Aging – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 
     

   8-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 
TAB F  Region’s Hazard Mitigation Plan – Will Cockrell, Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 
TAB G  Development Activity Report – Andrew Pompei, Planner 

 
  9–BUDGET WORK SESSION – AGENCY PRESENTATIONS 
 Each speaker has been allotted ten (10) minutes to present their agency information followed by a  
 five (5) minute question and answer period 

 StreamWatch/Rose Brown 
JAUNT/Donna Shaunesey 
TJPED/Helen Cauthen 
Piedmont Workforce Network/Heather Foor 
Jefferson Area CHIP/Judy Smith 

  CV Small Business Development Center/Nora Gillespie 
Piedmont Housing Alliance/Karen Reifenberger 
Fluvanna Arts Council/Adele Schaefer 
JABA/Cheryl Cooper 
Legal Aid Justice Center/Kathleen Caldwell 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

  TJEMS/Stephen Rea 

  TJ Soil & Water Conservation/Alyson Sappington 

 MACAA/Bertha Armstrong 

 

  10-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

  Budget Discussion 

 

11-NEW BUSINESS 

 

12-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 13-CLOSED MEETING 

   Discuss Legal Matters – consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the  

provision of  legal advice by such counsel and pending/current Litigation. 

 

14-ADJOURN 

  

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 





Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, February 8th, 2012 

Page 1
 

 
 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
BUDGET WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Morris Room 
Fluvanna Administration Building 

February 8th, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
    Bob Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman  

Joe Chesser 
    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker  
     
ALSO PRESENT:  Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kenney called the work session of February 8th, 2012, to order, at 7:00 p.m. in the Morris 
Room, Fluvanna Administration Building, Palmyra, Virginia. 
 
Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator, and Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, 
reviewed with the Board the following items: 
 Housekeeping 

o Missing department description pages 
o Upcoming Budget Work Sessions 

 Federal Mandate Items 
 State Mandate Items 
 Departments under Local Control 
 Items included in the current proposed FY13 Budget 
 Items not included in the current proposed FY13 Budget 
 Top 5 Local revenues 
 Local Revenue Sources 
 General Property Taxes 
 Real Estate Tax 
 Personal Property Tax 
 Public Utility Tax Calculation 
 Other Local Revenue 
 Consumer Utility Taxes 
 Local Sales Taxes 
 Expenditures 

o Operating Expenditures 
o Key Expenditures 

 Annual Debt Service 
 Debt Service Ratios 
 General Fund – Fund Balance 
 Unemployment Rate 
 Priorities requiring Board Discussion & Decision 

 



Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, February 8th, 2012 

Page 2
 

 
 

DISCUSSION 
The Board discussed the following items: 
 Any adjustments to the VRS rate will be passed along to the employees. 

o Adds back $111,082 to the operating budget. 
o What is the impact to the employees? 

 Living Wage, waiting for further information. 
 Remove Historic Courthouse repairs. 

o Adds $30,000 back to the operating budget. 
 Remove Facilities/Maintenance vehicle replacement. 

o Adds $25,000 back to the operating budget. 
 Remove A & E and building of animal shelter. 

o Adds $355,000 back to the fund balance. 
 Remove additional professional services for Board of Supervisors. 

o Adds $100,000 to operating budget. 
o Decrease $1,000 for mileage, $1,500 for Subsistence & Lodging, $1,500 for 

Convention & Education. 
 Reduction in funding to Schools 

o Adds back $150,000 for not combining County and school attorney services. 
 Level funding for not-for-profit agencies. 
 Remove County and School in-house legal services ($350,000). 

o Not combining brings attorney budget back to $200,000. 
 Restore and reclassify Athletic Director, contingent upon more revenue information. 
 Remove Fire and Rescue Vehicles ($225,000). 

o Adds back $225,000 to the operating budget. 
 Split the health insurance increase with staff; waiting for more information on the impact 

to staff. 
The Board requested to get more information on the lowest salaries in the County. 
The Board requested more information on what the impact of requiring staff to pay VRS and  

Health Insurance would be. 
The Board asked to know how many part-time employees are receiving health insurance. 
The Board requested to see the generated revenue for the Athletic Director position. 
After the above decisions, the Board is currently looking at 66 ½ cent tax rate.   
The proposed budget will be presented to the public: 

 March 1st, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., at the Fluvanna County Community Center, 
5725 James Madison Highway, Fork Union, VA 23055. 

 March 5th, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lake Monticello Fire House, Maple Room, 10 
Slice Road, Palmyra, VA, 22963. 

 
Mr. Coffey recommended to the Board that discussing additional revenue opportunities would be 
beneficial to the budget.   
 Level of Services vs. Revenue. 



Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, February 8th, 2012 

Page 3
 

 
 

ADJOURN 
MOTION: 

At 10:21p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the work session meeting of 
Wednesday, February 8th, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried with a 
vote of 5-0. AYES:  Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS: 
None. ABSENT:  None. 

. 
 

 
 

ATTEST:     FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
__________________   _______________________ 
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk   Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 





Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 February 15, 2012 

Page 1 
 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 15th, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

Bob Ullenbruch, Vice-Chairman  
    Mozell H. Booker 

Donald W. Weaver  
    Joe Chesser 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fred Payne, County Attorney 
    Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator/Planning Director 
    John Robins, Public Works Director 
    Pat Groot, Grants Administrator  
    Dwight Godwin, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
    Mary Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Kenney called the meeting of February 15th, 2012, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 
Courtroom in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited, after which, 
Chairman Kenney called for a moment of silence. 
 
REPORTS 
County Report 
Mr. Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 
 16 applications have been received so far for the County Administrator; position closes 

Friday, February 24, 2012. 
 Herndon Masonry donated $5,500 in labor, for the bricklaying and finishing of the 

Carysbrook Softball Concession Stand. 
 Earthquake Assistance: 575 residents enrolled; and $5,860.00 has been disbursed. 
 Senator Hurt’s staff will hold a Constituent Work Day in Fluvanna, Friday, February 17, 

2012, at the Fluvanna County Public Library, from 9:00a.m. - 11:00a.m. They will meet 
with constituents needing assistance with Federal Agencies. 

 Economic Development position has been filled by Mr. Bobby Popowicz and will start 
on March 5, 2012. 

 Ms. Groot, Mr. Chesser and I met with Ms. Helen Coffin, President of the Thomas 
Jefferson Partnership Economic Development. 

 Attended the Virginia Planning District Commission Conference.(theme was Economic 
Development).  Top two things that Richmond said they needed were Microfinance and 
Workforce Development.  Virginia is #1 in Economic Development in the country. 

 Dinner is requested for the March 7, 2012, meeting. 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 February 15, 2012 

Page 2 
 

 

 Management letter responding to the audit corrections was handed out.  The Board had 
no comments or questions. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
 Jack Ruch, Rivanna District, addressed the Board in opposition to the roundabout 

proposed for the intersection of Route 15 & Route 53. 
 Adele Schaefer, President of the Fluvanna County Arts Council, addressed the board in 

support of naming a room in the Carysbrook Performing Arts Center after Mr. William 
Anderson. 

 Don Macinicoll, Cunningham District, addressed the Board in support of reopening the 
Carysbrook Fitness Center. 

 Sheria A. James, Manager of Fluvanna County JABA, addressed the Board in regards to 
the great service the Parks and Recreation Department gives them. 

 Harold Bare, Sr., addressed the Board in regards to the installation of water and sewer at 
Zion Crossroads. 

 Overton McGehee, Palmyra District, addressed the Board in regards to funding the 
schools and in support of raising taxes. 

 Jimmy Koczan, Palmyra District, addressed the Board in regards to funding the schools 
and in support of raising taxes. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the first round of public comments. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 
 Minutes from February 1st, 2012, meeting, as presented. 
 Initiate Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Vision Chapter. 
 Radio Narrow Banding. 
 Approve contract with Humane Society University for shelter training. 
 Authorization to submit Chesapeake Bay Green Streets Grant Application. 
 Waiver of Building Permit fees for Earthquake repairs. 
 Request to name a room in the Carysbrook Performing Arts Center. 

Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  
Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney, Chesser and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  
None. 

 
Mrs. Booker encouraged residents to look at the revised Vision Chapter. 
 
Chairman Kenney spoke in regards to his support for naming room at the Carysbrook Performing 
Arts Center after Mr. William Anderson. 
 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
None 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 February 15, 2012 

Page 3 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Region Ten Update – Ms. Barbara Bartell, Fluvanna County Representative of Region Ten, Mr. 
Robert Johnson, Executive Director of Region Ten, reviewed with the Board the programs they 
focused on: Employment and Housing, Crisis Intervention Teams, and the Wounded Warriors 
Program.  Would like to request level funding this year; wanted to ask for $25,000.00, but 
understand the Economic constraints, and would be satisfied with level funding.  Mr. Morgan 
Lanier, Director of Fluvanna Region Ten Clinic, reviewed the services they provided for 
Fluvanna residents.  Mr. James Harman, a resident who has received services from Region Ten, 
addressed the Board regarding how helpful their services have been. 
 
Community Wellness Program at the Carysbrook Fitness Center – Mr. Dwight Godwin, Parks 
and Recreation Director, reviewed with the Board the importance of reopening the Health 
Wellness Center.  The Board discussed, and requested this item be put on a future agenda for the 
March 7, 2012, Board of Supervisors meeting, as an action item. 
 
ACTION MATTERS 
School System Wastewater Treatment Plant Repair – Ms. Renee Hoover, Finance Director, 
addressed the Board with this request. 
 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to approve the budget supplement of $100,000 from fund balance 
for Fluvanna County Public Schools wastewater treatment plant located at the current 
high school site. 

The following general ledger lines will be adjusted: 
10087000 409251 Transfer to School Fund           $100,000.00 
10000090 343100 Use of Fund Balance                  100,000.00 
25100090 340100 Transfer from General Fund       100,000.00 
25165000 496004 Operations and Maintenance      100,000.00 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, 
Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 
Reappointment/Parks and Recreation Advisory Board –  

MOTION: 
Mrs. Booker moved to reappoint Ms. Norma Searcy to the Parks & Recreation Advisory 
Board, Social Service position, with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on 
June 30, 2014.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: 
Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 

 
Reappointment/Thomas Jefferson Planning Water Resources Protection Foundation –  

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to reappoint Mr. John Easter to the Thomas Jefferson Planning Water 
Resources Protection Foundation, with a term to begin immediately, and to terminate on 
January 31, 2016.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 February 15, 2012 

Page 4 
 

 

AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  
None. 

 
Reappointment/Jefferson Area Board for Aging (JABA) –  

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to reappoint Mrs. Mozell H. Booker to the Jefferson Area Board of 
Aging (JABA) Board of Directors, Fork Union with a term to begin February 29, 2011, 
and terminate on February 28, 2014. Mr. Ullenbruch seconded.  The motion carried, with 
a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. 
ABSENT:  None. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Government Reform Committee – Mr. Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator, addressed 
this request to create a committee to examine ways of streamlining the organization, providing 
more efficient and effective services, and reduceing costs, where possible.  After some 
discussion the Board requested to defer this matter to the March 7th, 2012, meeting and discuss 
under unfinished business. 
 
Budget Discussion – Mr. Darren Coffey, Interim County Administrator, reviewed with the Board 
the questions that arose at the February 8th, 2012 work session.  The following topics were 
discussed: 
 VRS 
 Health Insurance 
 Steady State Budget 

 
The Board directed staff to present a benefits scenario of an employee making $35,000.00 for 
the February 22, 2012, Budget Work Session. 
 
The Board directed staff to present what Health Insurance costs would be for 
Employer/Employee paying 50/50 of total health expense, along with the Employer/Employee 
paying 50/50 of increase for the February 22, 2012, Budget Work Session. 
 
The Capital Improvements and Budget Public Hearing will be on April 11th, 2012, in the Circuit 
Court Room in Palmyra, Virginia, at 7:00pm 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Budget Public meetings will be held on March 1st, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., at the Fluvanna County 
Community Center, 5725 James Madison Highway, Fork Union, VA, 23055; and March 5th, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lake Monticello Fire House, Maple Room, 10 Slice Road, Palmyra, 
VA, 22963.  The Public Budget meeting will also be taped on March 5th, 2012, and run on the 
Lake Monticello TV. 
 
Budget Work Session with School Board on February 22, 2012, in the County Courts Building, 
Palmyra, VA, at 6:00 p.m. 
 



Board of Supervisors Minutes 
 February 15, 2012 

Page 5 
 

 

Budget Work Session with Constitutional Officers and Social Services Board on February 29, 
2012, in the County Courts Building, Palmyra, VA, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Agency Presentations will be on March 7th, 2012, in the County Courts Building, Palmyra, VA, 
at 6:00 p.m. after the regular Board meeting. 
 
Aqua Virginia Water Rates – With a consensus from the Board Chairman Kenney is going to 
write a letter to Aqua Virginia opposing of the proposed rate increase for Lake Monticello 
residents. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 
 Mel Sheridan, Commission of Revenue – addressed the Board in regards to the projected 

revenue. 
 Len Bozza, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in regards to rescue and fire 

volunteers and worker’s compensation. 
 Erin Small, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of fully funding the 

schools. 
 Gequetta Murray-Key, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in regards to the decisions 

being made for the future of this county and the residents. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the second segment of public 
comments. 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
None 
 
ADJOURN 

MOTION: 
At 9:21 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn to February 22, 2012, at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Circuit Court Room of the Fluvanna Courts Building. Mrs. Booker seconded. 
The motion carried, with a vote of 5-0.  AYES: Kenney, Ullenbruch, Booker, 
Weaver and Chesser. NAYS:  None. ABSENT:  None. 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________               
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 
 

  
 





Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, February 22nd, 2012 

Page 1
 

 
 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
BUDGET WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

February 22nd, 2012 
6:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
    Bob Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman  

Joe Chesser 
    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker  
 
SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Camilla Washington, Chairwoman 
       William Hughes, Vice-Chair 

Bertha Armstrong 
       Brenda Pace 
       
ALSO PRESENT:  Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kenney and Chairwoman Washington called the joint work session meeting of February 
22nd, 2012 to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Circuit Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, 
Virginia. 
 
 SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET PRESENTATION  
Chairwoman Washington reviewed with the Board the four strategic goals the School Board has set.   

1) Provide quality education for all children. 
2) Build a culture that’s conducive to learning in a safe and nurturing environment. 
3) Foster a relationship with our community. 
4) Operate in an effective and efficient manner. 

 
Ms. Gena Keller, School Superintendent, presented an overview of the School Board’s proposed 
FY13 budget, along with the accomplishments, desires and future goals for the Fluvanna County 
Schools.  
 
The Board discussed with the School Board their requests.  
 
At the end of the School Board’s budget presentation, Chairwoman Washington adjourned their 
meeting. 
 
RECESS 
The Board recessed at 7:04 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE 
The Board reconvened at 7:18 p.m. 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Budget Work Session Minutes, February 22nd, 2012 

Page 2
 

 
 

BUDGET DISCUSSION 
The Board discussed the information in regards to the projected VRS and Health Insurance costs to 
the employees that the Board requested from the February 15, 2012 meeting. 
 
Mr. Weaver requested information on the impact of Health Insurance for the School staff to discuss 
at the next work session. 
 
Mr. Coffey reviewed how the budget committee came to the proposed 0.68 sustainable tax rate 
budget.   
 
The Board discussed in length their recommendations of where they would like to see the tax rate. 
 
The next Budget Work Session will be on February 29, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. in the Circuit Courtroom in 
the County Courts Building with the Constitutional Officers and Social Services.  
 
ADJOURN 

MOTION: 
At 8:04p.m., Mr. Weaver moved to adjourn the work session meeting of Wednesday, 
February 22nd, 2012. Mrs. Booker seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 4-1. 
AYES:  Ullenbruch, Booker, Weaver and Chesser. NAYS: Kenney. ABSENT:  
None. 

. 
 

 
 

ATTEST:     FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
__________________   _______________________ 
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk   Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 





 
3/7/2012 p2





COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA  
Virginia E-911 Services Board Dorothy Spears-Dean

PSC Coordinator
(804) 416-6201

Terry D. Mayo
Board Administrative 

Assistant
(804) 416-6197

Commonwealth Enterprise Solutions Center – 11751 Meadowville Lane – Chester, Virginia 23836
(866) 482-3911 – FAX (804) 416-6353 – TTY USERS TDD #711– www.va911.org

Michael M. Cline
Chairman

VDEM

John W. Knapp, Jr.
Vice-Chairman

Verizon 

David A. Von Moll
Treasurer

Comptroller

Linda W. Cage
Mecklenburg County

J.D. Diggs
York County

Danny Garrison
Richmond Ambulance 

Authority

Tracy Hanger
City of Hampton

Lt. Colonel Robert Kemmler
Virginia State Police

Robert Layman
AT & T

Chief Ron Mastin
Fairfax County

Chief Doug Middleton
Henrico County

Sam Nixon
VITA

Pat B. Shumate
Roanoke County

Mickey Sims
Buggs Island Telephone

Denise B. Smith
Charles City County

January 18, 2012

Ms. Tammy Johnson
Fluvanna ECC
P. O. Box 113
Palmyra, VA  22963

Dear Ms. Johnson:

This letter is in reference to your grant application for consideration under the 
FY13 PSAP Grant Program for mapping system replacement, Grant ID 146.  I 
am pleased to advise you that the Virginia E-911 Services Board has approved 
your request.  You have been awarded $150,000. This award does not require a 
match of local funds.

The PSAP Grant Program has a grant cash disbursement policy of 
reimbursement.  A firm fixed-price contract, purchase order, or quote will not be 
acceptable forms of documentation for draw down of funds against the grant 
award.   Grantees must wait until services are performed or goods are received 
and the corresponding invoices are received and/or paid in order to recover costs.  

Funding for this grant award will be available for draw down beginning July 1, 
2012. All funding requests must be submitted on the Public Safety Grant Draw 
Down Request Form, which is available on the ISP website. The invoice(s) that 
substantiates the amount requested must be attached to the request form when 
submitted for funding payment.  Once the project is complete, you will need to
close out the grant award with a final Financial and Programmatic Report.

Finally, in order for a funding request to be processed, the PSAP must have 
already submitted any required financial and grant progress reports for any 
previous fiscal years by the identified deadline, unless an exception has been 
granted by the PSC Coordinator. This includes required submission of any true-
ups and supporting documentation.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact your Regional 
Coordinator or me via email.

Congratulations on your grant award!

Sincerely, 

Lisa Nicholson
Public Safety Program Manager BOS 3/7/2012   page 2





2



3



  
 
 
  
 
 

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 • (434) 591-1910  • FAX (434) 591-1911 • www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

Memorandum 
TO: Board of Supervisors 
FROM:  Renee Hoover, Director of Finance  
DATE:  March 7, 2012 
RE:  Accounts Payable Report 

 
****************************************************************************************** 
Accounts Payable 

The accounts payable report is attached for the bills paid between January 25, 2012 and February 28, 2012. 

If you have questions about a payment and want more information regarding it, please contact me prior to the 
meeting.  I can research it, provide you the information, and share it with the Supervisors at the meeting.  
Otherwise, I will take your questions at the meeting, answer if possible, and follow up after the meeting with the 
information via email.   

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors ratify the expenditures along with payroll for the month of 
January. 

General  $1,431,173.42 
Community Programs                                             80.00 
Federal Grants                                                    5,319.00 

  State/Local Grants                                               5,228.00 
Capital Improvements                                    700,890.97 
Debt Service                                                          500.00 
Sewer                                                                 6,959.37 
Fork Union Sanitary District                           15,320.90 

Total Expenditures by Fund                        2,195471.66  
Payroll – January $648,439.11 
Total Payables & Payroll 2,843,910.77 

Motion: 

I move the Accounts Payable from January 25, 2012 through February 28, 2012 and Payroll for the month of 
January 2012 in the amount of $ 2,843,910.77 be ratified.   

 

 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

Renee Hoover 
Director of Finance 

rhoover@co.fluvanna.va.us 



























































































































MOTION: I move that the Board authorize the Parks and Recreation Department to reopen the 

Carysbrook Fitness Center for public use. 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  MARCH 7, 2012 

SUBJECT: Authorize the Parks and Recreation Department to reopen the Carysbrook Fitness Center 

for public use. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends reopening the Carysbrook Fitness Center for public 

use. 

TIMING: Routine 

FISCAL IMPLAICATION: Staff is requesting no additional funding to operate the Carysbrook 

Fitness Center.   The minimum impact cost to reopening the fitness center for public use will be covered 

in our current operating budget. 

POLICY IMPLICATION: None 

DISCUSSION: The Board directed staff from its February 15
th
meeting to resubmit this request as an 

agenda action matter to authorize the Parks and Recreation Department to reopen the Carysbrook Fitness 

Center for public use.   Staff was also directed to research prior Board minutes to determine if the board 

took action to close the Carysbrook Recreation Center building.  Based on staff research, no 

documentation was found in which the Board took action to close the building.   Since the closure of the 

fitness center, the Parks and Recreation Department has received numerous public inquires requesting that 

the center be reopened to provide the County residents with an affordable place to meet their health and 

fitness needs.  The minimum impact cost to reopening the fitness center for public use will be covered in 

our current operating budget.  Below is a cost analysis of reopening the Carysbrook Fitness Center: 

Projected Monthly Expenditures 

Electric Heating/Cooling Staff Estimated Monthly 

Expenditures 

$45 $118 $356 $519 

 

Projected Monthly Revenue 

Estimated Fitness Memberships Monthly Membership Rate Estimated Monthly Revenue 

25 participants $20/month $500 

 

 









 

 

 

 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

From: Daniel Nairn, Regional Planner 

Date: February 16, 2012 

Reference:    Update to Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Background: The Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission is updating the Regional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan for member localities. The purpose of the plan is to prepare for natural disasters before 
they occur, thus reducing loss of life, property damage, and disruption of commerce. The prior plan was 
adopted by all jurisdictions in the region and approved by the Virginia Department of Emergency 
Management (VDEM) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in 2006, and the plan 
must be updated every five years to remain active. An active plan is required by VDEM in order to access 
Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Assistance funds and the Post-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.  

Requested Action: TJPDC staff asks the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors to review the attached list 
of hazard mitigation action items prepared for the county and offer any revisions or additional material 
to improve the plan. No formal action is necessary at this time, but a resolution supporting the plan will 
be sought in the summer of 2012 after state and federal review has been completed. Because the 
review process is lengthy, it is important for local decision-makers to familiarize themselves with the 
substantive content of the plan early in the approval process. Action items included in the plan have a 
greater likelihood of receiving funding from outside sources, and the county would not assume any 
obligation to complete all action items in the plan. 

Process of Update: The Hazard Mitigation Work Group, made up of planning and emergency operations 
staff from each member jurisdiction, has guided the plan update, and public input has been collected 
throughout.  

1) The Hazard Identification and Risk Analysis section of the plan was completed and approved by 
VDEM in the Fall of 2011. It can be downloaded from the TJPDC website at the url: 
http://www.tjpdc.org/environment/hazard.asp.  This section provides the objective basis for 
hazard mitigation strategies by describing and analyzing all natural hazards that occur in our 
region. Software developed by FEMA was used to estimate the economic and human impact of 
various disaster scenarios. The following hazards were identified as highest priority based on the 
risk assessment: flooding, winter storms, and hurricanes/high winds. Earthquakes are also given 
special attention, due to the August 2011 earthquake and aftershocks felt throughout the 
region. 
 

2) The Goals and Objectives of the plan were drafted during a public workshop held on October 19, 
2011. A broad range of participants from around the region convened to craft language 

1



describing the goals and objectives of the plan through a team-based workshop. The overall 
goals that resulted were: 
 

a. Educate the public to be personally prepared for disasters 
b. Reduce the impact of hazards on regional infrastructure, and  
c. Protect people, especially vulnerable populations, from harm during hazard events. 

 
3) The Hazard Mitigation Action Items are specific actions to be implemented and monitored by 

localities or partner organizations in the region. The action items are written to support the 
objectives of the plan. Sources for action items include the Hazard Mitigation Working Group, 
feedback from Local Emergency Preparedness Committees (LEPC), local comprehensive plans 
and other adopted documents, a public online survey with approximately 120 responses from 
throughout the region, and discussions with staff members from agencies charged with hazard 
preparedness. A final public workshop will be held on February 8th, 2012 to revise the action 
items as needed. 

TJPDC staff intends to submit a finalized plan to VDEM and FEMA by the middle of March, once all 
governing jurisdictions have been able to review and provide comment on the plan. After approval from 
these agencies, which is expected to take approximately three months, each jurisdiction in the region 
will need to pass a resolution in support of the plan for it to become valid for the jurisdiction. A regional 
public hearing will be held at a meeting of the Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission to adopt 
the plan. 

2



DRAFT 2012 Action Items for Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

Activity Code Activity Description 

Thomas Jefferson Region 
1 Create a hazards library and information toolkit 
2 Provide a copy of the Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan to each library in the 

Jefferson-Madison Regional Library system 
3 Identify potential locations for temporary housing for use after a hazard 
4 Identify locations for deposit of debris after a hazard 
5 Plan for facilitating affordable housing in the aftermath of a disaster, in cases 

where the regional housing supply is temporarily reduced 
6 Update addresses in Repetitive Loss Properties database 
7 Adopt a cooperative agreement between localities to set a single code to alter 

traffic signals for use by emergency response vehicles from each jurisdiction 
8 Establish a registry of individuals with specialized needs, including their location, 

and their requirements for transportation assistance 
9 Ensure that emergency shelters meet accessibility requirements and are capable 

of housing caretakers, medical equipment and service animals for the elderly 
and those with disabilities 

10 Incorporate training on how to effectively communicate with people with 
disabilities during an emergency event into existing education for transit drivers, 
first responders and emergency management staff 

11 Conduct a public education program on disaster preparedness, leveraging 
existing materials and sharing resources regionally 

12 Encourage all property owners of commercial, industrial, and multifamily 
housing facilities to have an Emergency Action Plan, including evacuation, 
sheltering, and communications protocol 

13 Encourage all businesses to have an Emergency Action Plan that is coordinated 
with plans for the facility 

14 Encourage major businesses to adopt a Business Continuity Plan, especially 
businesses that provide critical services in the aftermath of a natural disaster 

15 Add emergency preparedness and response information into local phone books 
16 coordinate with local churches to distribute necessary resources to households 

and assist in evacuation 
17 Adopt a Regional Recovery Plan that provides a blueprint for the restoration of 

business operations and rebuilding of communities and infrastructure 
18 Establish a “Hazard Awareness Week” with local media to educate public 

about natural hazards 
19 Create a website and app that allows members of public to report potentially 

hazardous situations as they are observed 
20 Identify, engage and coordinate with amateur radio operators to prepare for 

communications during an event 
21 Coordinate with Neighborhood Associations to establish a point person within 

each neighborhood for communications and assisting vulnerable populations 
 
Fluvanna County 

1 Conduct structural evaluations and study of resistance to hazards of all current 
and proposed shelters 

2 Retrofit emergency services building for hazard resistance 

3



Activity Code Activity Description 

3 Install backup generators in shelters and critical facilities 
4 Create a community toolbox with tools and information for local homeowners 
5 Develop an all-hazard resource center at libraries or other public office, 

including a copy of the Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
6 Require protective stormwater mitigation measures such as reducing impervious 

surfaces, stilling and infiltration basins, and restoring wetlands in growth areas 
7 Provide training for building inspectors and code officials on mitigation 

techniques and hazard-resistant building 
8 Improve local capabilities to perform earthquake building safety evaluations 

and enforce building codes in high seismic hazard areas 
9 Create an educational program to help residents understand the benefits and 

costs of earthquake insurance 
10 Retrofit existing public buildings to meet contemporary standards for 

earthquake resistance 
11 Equip owners of historic properties that may be more susceptible to earthquake 

damage with information about retrofitting structures to improve earthquake 
resistance 

12 Ensure all houses have clear address signs that are visible during snowstorms 
13 Ensure that all schools have regular disaster response drills 
14 Implement recommendations from Water Supply Plan 
15 Implement recommendations from the Wireless Telecommunications Facility 

Master Plan to enhance emergency communications 
16 Update building codes to improve earthquake resilience 

 
Town of Columbia 

1 Incorporate hazard mitigation plans into community plans 
2 Create a relocation plan for residents currently living within the floodplain to 

offer housing choices outside of a hazard area 
3 Acquire existing structures within the floodplain and either demolish or relocate 
4 Repurpose the properties within the floodplain to serve the Town of Columbia 

without imposing risks from future flooding 
5 Expand cell phone coverage to provide reliable service to the whole Town 
6 Enhance emergency communications to provide reliable mobile coverage within 

the Town, per the adopted Fluvanna County telecommunications plan 
7 Raise bridges and roads prone to flooding 
8 Repair, replace or relocate septic and drainage fields that leak sewage into 

the river during flooding 
 

4



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
2011 DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY REPORT 



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
2011 DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY REPORT 



 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Pictures on Front Cover (from left to right): 
Attached Home at the Village of Nahor;  New Fluvanna High School; New Home near Cunningham; Construction Equipment at Fork Union Military Academy’s New Mainte-
nance Facility; New Dormitories at Fork Union Military Academy; Attached Homes at Sycamore Square.  

Introduction ............................................................................. 2 

Executive Summary .................................................................. 4 

Development & County Government ...................................... 5 

Planning & Community Development ......................... 5 

Building Inspections ..................................................... 7 

2009 Comprehensive Plan ....................................................... 9 

Land Use Planning Areas .............................................. 9 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments ............................. 10 

Residential Activity ................................................................... 11 

Building Permits ........................................................... 11 

Subdivisions.................................................................. 18 

Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation ......................... 22 

Development Activity............................................................... 24 

Site Development Plans ............................................... 24 

Zoning Activity.......................................................................... 30 

Zoning Text Amendments ............................................ 30 

Zoning Map Amendments ........................................... 32 

Special Use Permits ...................................................... 35 

Code Compliance ......................................................... 40 

Board of Zoning Appeals .............................................. 43 

Preservation Programs............................................................. 45 

Agricultural & Forestal Districts ................................... 46 

Land Use Taxation ........................................................ 49 

Conservation Easements .............................................. 50 

Appendix A: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map ........ 51 

Appendix B: Map of Agricultural & Forestal Districts .............. 52 

Appendix C: Map of Conservation Easements ......................... 53 

Appendix D: Status of Comprehensive Plan Strategies ............ 54 

Appendix E: Long-Range Planning Schedule (2012) ............... 126 

 

 

 



2 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

The Fluvanna County Department of Planning and Community Development is proud to present the 2011 Development Activity Re-
port (DAR).  Development activity in this report has been approved by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors and committees 
appointed or approved by them, including the Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, and Planning and Community Devel-
opment staff.  This report has been prepared to help visualize the growth impacting Fluvanna County, which is reflected by changes 
in land use.  Land use changes are tracked by the Development Information Database (DID), which was used to prepare this report 
and is maintained by the Planning Department.   
 
The DID is used to track site development plans, subdivisions, code compliance cases, special use permits, variances, zoning map 
amendments, zoning text amendments, and conservation easements, among other activities.  A similar database used by the Build-
ing Inspections Department tracks building permits and is used in the residential activity calculations in this report.  A direct com-
parison of the past ten (10) years worth of land use planning data is also provided throughout this report.   
 
The DAR allows land use comparisons and trends to be seen over time, which provides important clues for future needs, such as 
new school bus routes and traffic systems.  This report reflects the outcome of development by Election District and Land Use Plan-
ning Area, and evaluates County preservation initiatives.  In addition, this report allows an analytical observation of the relationship 
between land use planning and various application requests.  For example, proposed growth areas may not achieve the intended 
results if development requests are granted in areas outside established Community Planning Areas.  This report provides a quanti-
tative summary of development throughout 2011, and indicates where this growth is taking place.   
 
The recessed economy and housing market continued to have some impact on Fluvanna County, as the number of building permits 
issued and new lots created have declined compared to past years. While more than a third of the new homes  built in the County 
were located within the Rivanna Community Planning Area, only a handful were constructed within the gates of Lake Monticello; as 
the subdivision approaches build-out, new construction is taking place elsewhere. Sycamore Square, Sycamore Landing, Mountain 
Meadows, and Fox Glen were other subdivisions that experienced new construction in 2011. Although few new lots were created, 
many landowners applied for boundary line adjustments, lot consolidations, and physical survey reviews.  
 
While overall development activity continued to decline in the county, many long range planning projects were completed in 2011. 
The Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master Plan was adopted in September 2011, after months of preparation and review 
by the Planning Department, CityScape Consultants, and the Planning Commission; the Telecommunications Facilities section of the 

INTRODUCTION 



3 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

zoning ordinance was adopted to support the master plan, and related amendments were made to the Comprehensive Plan. The 
Cox Company helped the County develop policies intended to encourage growth within the designated Urban Development Area 
(UDA) at Zion Crossroads; based on The Cox Company’s recommendations, the County amended its Comprehensive Plan and modi-
fied the Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning ordinance. Earlier in 2011, the County modified its regulations related to side-
walks and setbacks within commercial and industrial districts. Planning staff and the Planning Commission have been reviewing the 
County’s rural zoning districts, off-street parking regulations, and landscaping requirements. 
 
In addition to the changes to the future land use map, the 2009 Comprehensive Plan contains 350 strategies for implementing the 
goals outlined in the plan.  Since the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan in March 2009, several of these strategies have been 
completed, others are on-going actions, and some are in the process of being implemented.  Appendix D provides a breakdown of 
the implementation strategies that have been completed, are in progress, or are on-going. Appendix E includes a list of long-range 
planning projects scheduled for 2012. 

Image 1: New church under construction  along State Route 53 near Palmyra. The church is be-
ing constructed in accordance with a site plan that was approved in 2010. 



4 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Land Use Planning Areas 

Fluvanna County’s Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2009, continues to influence growth and development decisions.  

The Comprehensive Plan’s designated growth areas cover 11% (20,000 acres) of the County. The growth areas, known as Com-
munity Development Areas, are located near existing population centers and are intended to receive the majority of new devel-
opment.  

Roughly 89% (165,000 acres) of the County are designated as rural areas by the Comprehensive Plan. There are two designa-
tions for rural areas: Rural Residential and Rural Preservation.  

 

Building Permits 

67 building permits for new homes were issued in 2011, a 38.5% decrease from the 109 permits issued in 2010. 

30 building permits for new homes (44.8%) were issued within designated growth areas.  

37 building permits for new homes (55.2%) were issued within rural areas.  

 

Subdivisions 

22 new lots were approved in 2011, a 80.9% decrease from the 115 new lots approved in 2010. 

Six (6), or 27%, of the new lots approved were within designated growth areas. 

Sixteen (16), or 73%, of the new lots approved were within rural areas.  

All sixteen (16) of the new lots approved within rural areas were associated with family subdivisions.  

 

Site Development Plans 

Sixteen (16) site development plans were reviewed in 2011, a 128.6%  increase from the seven (7) plans reviewed in 2010.  

Half of the site development plans reviewed (8) were located within designated growth areas.  

 

Special Use Permits 

Six (6) special use permits were reviewed in 2011, a 14.3% decrease from the seven (7) special use permits reviewed in 2010. 

All of the special use permits reviewed were located outside of designated growth areas.  



5 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Zoning 

Two (2) rezoning applications were considered in 2011. One (1) rezoning application was approved, while the other was with-
drawn. 

Three (3) zoning text amendments were approved in 2011.  

No variances were granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) in 2011, compared to the one (1) variance granted in 2010.  

 

Code Compliance 

Twenty-three (23) complaints were investigated in 2011, a 25.8% decrease from the 31 complaints investigated in 2010. 

Twenty (20) compliances cases were resolved, and three (3) cases are pending resolution.  

 

Land Conservation 

There are 20 Agricultural and Forestal Districts (AFDs) in Fluvanna County, which include 18,606 acres (10% of Fluvanna 
County). AFD enrollment was unchanged in 2011. 

Four (4) new conservation easements, totaling 466.1 acres, were recorded in 2011. These easements are held by the Virginia 
Department of Forestry, the Virginia Outdoors Foundation, and Fluvanna County.  

In 2011, 111,402 acres (61% of Fluvanna County) were enrolled within the Land Use Taxation Program, a reduction of 2,217 
acres from 2010.  

 

Image 2: Newer attached homes in Sycamore Square, a development located within one of the 
designated growth areas. 



6 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT & COUNTY GOVERNMENT: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

To ensure that growth and development occur in an orderly way that does not compromise the health, safety, and welfare of cur-
rent residents and newcomers, Fluvanna County has its own Department of Planning and Community Development. The depart-
ment’s duties and activities are described below:  
 
Current Planning (Development Administration) 

This primary activity involves the daily administration and enforcement of the zoning and subdivision ordinances.  Tasks associated 
with the administration of these ordinances include the processing of subdivision proposals, boundary adjustments, easement 
plats, site plans, special use permits, rezonings, variances, general inquiries, and other requests.  

The department serves as the primary staff contact for the Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, Agricultural and Fore-
stal District Advisory Committee, and other ad hoc committees and task forces.  Department staff also supports the Board of Super-
visors as needed or requested. 

Long Range Planning (Project/Policy Development and Management) 

Planning recommendations are routinely provided to the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors on a wide array of is-
sues.  Strategic and long-term planning begins with the preparation and implementation of the Comprehensive Plan, associated 
comprehensive plan or zoning text amendments, the annual review of the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) by the Planning Com-
mission, and other local projects.  These planning documents provide the foundation for many of the land use and budgetary deci-
sions that are implemented by the County. 

The department also manages the Agricultural and Forestal District and the Conservation Easement programs.  Staff advises county 
agencies about regional and local transportation issues and assists in the development of recreational facilities as needed.  Geo-
graphic Information Systems (GIS) information critical to planning and land use decisions is developed, collected, and maintained 
by planning staff.  Routine contact with other regional planning departments including Cumberland, Goochland, Louisa, and the 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (and all of its member localities) is critical to maintaining up-to-date information 
and invaluable regional connections. 



7 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Code Enforcement and Inspections 
 
Code compliance ensures that Fluvanna County’s regulations are enforced consistently and equitably.  A wide variety of code issues 
routinely come to the County including subdivision and zoning ordinance violations, inoperative vehicle and junkyard complaints, 
and other nuisance and miscellaneous complaints.   
 
Current Staff 
 
The Department of Planning and Community Development consists of four full-time employees and one part-time employee: 
 
 Darren Coffey:  Planning Director/Interim County Administrator 
 Steve Tugwell:  Senior Planner (Current Development) 
 Andrew Pompei: Planner (Long-Range Planning) 
 Lauren Ryalls:  Senior Program Support Assistant 
 Scott Miller:  Code Compliance Officer 
  

Image 3: Fork Union Military Academy’s new maintenance facility is being constructed in accordance with a site plan that was ap-
proved by Planning Department staff in November 2009. 



8 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT & COUNTY GOVERNMENT: BUILDING INSPECTIONS 

To ensure that structures are built and modified in a safe manner, Fluvanna County has its own Department of Building Inspections. 
The department’s duties and activities are described below: 
 
Building Inspections 
 
The department enforces the Uniform Statewide Building Code for all new structures, additions, and alterations regulated by state 
law. As part of its enforcement activities, the department reviews plans associated with all new regulated construction; performs 
the required building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical inspections; and issues the necessary permits and certificates of occu-
pancy. Inspectors ensure that new construction meets the regulations set forth within the zoning ordinance, including setbacks. 
The department is also responsible for assigning addresses to new structures and initiating the street naming process.  
 
The department worked with County residents, the Virginia Department of Emergency Management (VDEM), and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to assess damage caused by the August 2011 earthquake. By January 2012, 117 reports of 
damage had been reported to the Department of Building Inspections. The department investigated many of these claims.  
 
Erosion & Sediment Control 
 
The department is responsible for issuing all new land disturbance permits and ensuring that developing sites are in conformance 
with Chapter 6 (Erosion & Sedimentation Control) of the County Code. As part of their duties, the Erosion and Sediment Control 
Site Inspectors perform site inspections on a two-week rotation and after all significant rainstorm events.  
 
Current Staff 
 
The Department of Building Inspections consists of four full-time employees: 
 
 Darius Lester:  Building Official 
 Andy Wills:  Building Inspector 
 Roger Black:  Erosion & Sediment Site Inspector 
 Amy Helfrich:  Permits Clerk 
 



9 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

2009 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: LAND USE PLANNING AREAS 

Planning Area Number of Parcels Approximate Acreage 
Percentage of Total County Acreage 

(Approximate) 

Community 6,784 19,140 10.4% 

Rural Residential 4,298 61,509 33.5% 

Rural Preservation 4,800 102,956 56.1% 

TOTAL 15,882 183,605 100.0% 

Table 1: Approximate Acreage in Land Use Planning Areas 

Figure 1: Comprehensive Plan Land Use 

Planning Areas

102,956; 56%

61,509; 34%

19,140; 10%

Community Rural Residential Rural Preservation

The Comprehensive Plan is a guide to the future growth and de-
velopment of Fluvanna County. The current Comprehensive Plan 
was adopted in 2009 with subsequent amendments. Since its 
adoption, the document has influenced land use decisions and 
County policy. Officials continue to implement strategies that 
help the County realize the goals described within the plan.  
 
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map shows where the 
County wants to direct new development. Fluvanna County has 
six Community Planning Areas, which are intended to support 
higher density, mixed-use development around existing popula-
tion centers. The Rural Residential areas accommodate low-
density, clustered residential development, while the Rural Pres-
ervation areas are intended to remain largely undeveloped.  

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



10 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

2009 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: AMENDMENTS 

Table 2: Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment Applications (2011) 

With the approval of the Board of Supervisors, the Comprehensive Plan may be amended. These amendments should be based 
upon established goals and sound planning principles. According to Virginia Code, the plan must be reevaluated and updated at 
least once every five years. Occasional revision is essential if the plan is to remain flexible and to continue to serve as a reliable 
guide for community growth; however, constant amendment of the plan undermines and limits its effectiveness.  
 
Since its adoption in 2009, there have been few amendments to the current Comprehensive Plan. To date, the Board of Supervisors 
has only approved three amendments to the 2009 Comprehensive Plan.  

Applicant Name 
Affected Chapters of the                    

Comprehensive Plan 
Description of Request 

Fluvanna County 
Land Use, Transportation, and              

Infrastructure 

Strengthen the Urban Development Area 
(UDA) and Telecommunications sections of 

the Comprehensive Plan 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



11 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS  

Generally, any project that involves building a 
new structure, altering an existing structure, 
or demolishing a structure will require a 
building permit. Fluvanna County issues 
building permits for all construction within its 
boundaries. The number of building permits 
issued for new home construction helps 
County officials understand the rate at which 
residential growth is occurring and where it is 
concentrated. In Fluvanna County, most new 
dwellings constructed are single-family units. 

Table 3: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by Type (2011) 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 

Image 4: A lot in Sycamore Square being prepared for 
a new single-family home.   

Housing Type 
Number of Permits 

Issued 
Percentage of Total 

New Home 56 83.6% 

New Home (Attached) 5 7.5% 

Singlewide Mobile Home 4 6.0% 

Doublewide Mobile Home 2 3.0% 

TOTAL 67 100.0% 

Figure 2: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by Type (2011)

56, 84%

5, 7%

4, 6%

2, 3%

New Home New Home (Attached)

Singlewide Mobile Home Doublewide Mobile Home



12 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

Table 4: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by Election District (2011) 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 

Image 5: Home under construction in the Cunningham District. 

Election District 
Number of Permits           

Issued 
Percentage of Total 

Columbia 6 9.0% 

Cunningham 11 16.4% 

Fork Union 5 7.5% 

Palmyra 41 61.2% 

Rivanna 4 6.0% 

TOTAL 67 100.0% 

Figure 3: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by 

Election District (2011)

41, 62%

5, 7%
11, 16%

4, 6%

6, 9%

Columbia Cunningham Fork Union Palmyra Rivanna



13 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

Table 5: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by Planning Area (2011) 

Planning Area 
Number of Permits 

Issued 
Percentage of Total 

Columbia Community Planning Area 0 0.0% 

Fork Union Community Planning Area 0 0.0% 

Rivanna Community Planning Area 24 35.8% 

Palmyra Community Planning Area 0 0.0% 

Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area 6 9.0% 

Community Planning Area Subtotal 30 44.8% 

Rural Residential Subtotal 25 37.3% 

Rural Preservation Subtotal 12 17.9% 

TOTAL 67 100.0% 

Figure 4: Building Permits Issued for New Homes by Planning 

Area (2011)

12, 18%

25, 37%

30, 45%

Community Rural Residential Rural Preservation



14 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

Lake Monticello is Fluvanna County’s largest population 
center. According to the 2010 census, Lake Monticello 
housed 9,920 residents, which represents 38.6% of Flu-
vanna County’s total population (2010 Census: 25,691). 
Since its establishment in the early 1970s, Lake Monti-
cello has supported most of the County’s residential 
growth. As the community approaches build-out, new 
construction has slowed; new homes in Lake Monticello 
represent only a small portion of all new construction 
countywide. According to County estimates, 429 of the 
community’s 4,625 lots are vacant.  

Table 6: Number of Permits Issued for New Homes Inside versus Outside Lake Monticello (2011) 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 

  Inside Lake Monticello Outside Lake Monticello County Overall 

Number of Permits Issued 6 61 67 

Percentage of Total 9.0% 91.0% 100.0% 

Average Cost of New 
Homes 

$261,000 $164,384 $178,207 

Total Cost of New Homes $1,566,000 $10,027,439 $11,593,439 

Figure 5: Number of Permits Issued for New 

Homes Inside versus Outside Lake Monticello 

(2011)
6, 9%

61, 91%

Inside Lake Monticello Outside Lake Monticello



15 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

Table 7: Building Permits Issued for New Homes Inside versus Outside Lake Monticello (2011) 

Year Inside Lake Monticello 
Outside Lake Monti-

cello 
Total 

Percentage Change from 
Previous Year 

2001 282 171 453 30.1% 

2002 269 162 431 -4.9% 

2003 138 221 359 -16.7% 

2004 154 182 336 -6.4% 

2005 79 184 263 -21.7% 

2006 42 176 218 -17.2% 

2007 27 150 177 -18.8% 

2008 23 95 118 -33.3% 

2009 9 103 112 -5.0% 

2010 9 100 109 -2.7% 

2011 6 61 67 -38.5% 

Figure 6: Building Permits Issued for New Homes Inside versus Outside 

Lake Monticello  (2001 - 2011)

0

100

200

300

400

500

Inside Lake Monticello Outside Lake Monticello Total

Inside/Outside Lake Monticello & Total Permits by Year

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e

rm
it

s

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011



16 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

Table 8: Building Permits Issued for New Homes Inside versus Outside Lake Monticello (2011) 

  Inside Lake Monticello Outside Lake Monticello 

Average Cost of New Homes $261,000 $164,384 

Figure 7: Average Cost of New Homes Inside versus Outside 

Lake Monticello (2011)

$261,000

$164,384

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

Inside Lake Monticello Outside Lake Monticello



17 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Table 9: Subdivisions with the Highest Number of Building 
Permits Issued for New Homes (2011) 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: BUILDING PERMITS 

As the number of new homes constructed in Lake Monti-
cello continues to decline, builders are purchasing lots in 
other newly-developed communities. Sycamore Square, 
located near Lake Monticello, had more new building 
permits (18) issued than any other subdivision (Image 6). 
The five subdivisions with the highest number of building 
permits issued for new homes are all located in the 
northwestern corner of the County, near Lake Monticello 
and Zion Crossroads.  

Subdivision Permits Issued 

Sycamore Square 18 

Sycamore Landing 7 

Lake Monticello 6 

Mountain Meadows  5 

Fox Glen 3 

Image 6: Single-Family Homes in Sycamore Square, including the sales model. 

Source:  Dept. of Building Inspections 



18 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: SUBDIVISION 

As its name implies, the subdivision ordinance regulates the division of land. Regulations within the subdivision ordi-
nance control the dimensions of lots, the extent and nature of required utilities, plat details, and necessary transporta-
tion improvements. Virginia Code requires all localities to adopt a subdivision ordinance. The approval of subdivision 
plans is an administrative process; local planning staff reviews subdivision plans to determine whether or not they meet 
the provisions of the subdivision ordinance. In Fluvanna County, most new subdivisions are associated with residential 
development.  

Image 7: The Villages of Nahor, a still-developing subdivision approved in 2005, is located 
within the Rivanna Community Planning Area.  



19 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: SUBDIVISION 

Planning Area Subdivisions Type and Number of Lots 

Community Major Minor Family Total 

Columbia 0 0 0 0 

Fork Union 0 0 2 2 

Palmyra 0 0 2 2 

Rivanna 0 2 0 2 

Scottsville 0 0 0 0 

Zion Crossroads 0 0 0 0 

Community Planning Area 0 2 4 6 

Rural Residential 0 0 2 2 

Rural Preservation 0 0 14 14 

TOTAL 0 2 20 22 

Table 10: Approved Subdivision Lots by Planning Area (2011) 

Figure 8: Approved Subdivision Lots by Planning Area 

(2011)

4, 20%

2, 10%

14, 70%

Community Planning Area Rural Residential Rural Preservation

In 2011, twenty-two (22) lots were created and approved 
through the subdivision process. Most of these lots are as-
sociated with family subdivisions. Family subdivisions allow 
for the transfer of land to closely-related family members. 
 
Most of the subdivisions approved were in areas designated 
as “Rural Preservation” by the Comprehensive Plan. These 
areas are intended to retain their rural character, while 
most new development should be directed to the Commu-
nity Planning Areas. 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



20 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: SUBDIVISION 

Table 11: Approved Subdivision Lots by Election District (2011) 

Election District Major (lots) Minor (lots) Family (lots) Total (lots) % of Total 

Columbia 0 0 10 10 45% 

Cunningham 0 0 6 6 27% 

Fork Union 0 0 2 2 9% 

Palmyra 0 2 2 4 18% 

Rivanna 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total (lots) 0 2 20 22 100% 

Figure 9: Approved Subdivision Lots by Election District (2011)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Major (lots) Minor (lots) Family (lots)

Type of Subdivision

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Lo

ts

Columbia Cunningham Fork Union Palmyra Rivanna

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



21 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: SUBDIVISION 

Table 12: Approved Subdivision Lots by Planning Area (2001 - 2011) 

Year 
Community 

Planning Area 
Primary Residen-
tial Planning Area 

Rural Residential 
Planning Area 

Rural Preservation 
Planning Area 

Total 
% Change from Pre-

vious Year  

2001 21 70 11 43 145 49.50% 

2002 26 69 13 98 206 42.10% 

2003 67 40 97 172 376 82.50% 

2004 67 63 91 199 420 11.70% 

2005 228 102 115 501 946 125.20% 

2006 32 44 250 392 718 -24.10% 

2007 79 17 75 418 589 -17.97% 

2008 80 4 33 33 150 -74.53% 

2009 2 0 48 40 90 -40.00% 

2010 40 0 45 30 115 21.74% 

2011 6 0 2 14 22 -82.61% 

Figure 10: Subdivision Lots Created by Planning Area (2001 - 2011) 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

Lo
ts

 C
re

at
ed

Community Planning Area Primary Residential Rural Residential Rural Preservation



22 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: FLUVANNA/LOUISA HOUSING FOUNDATION  

Figure 11: Fluvanna Housing Foundation 

Expenditures on Major Activities (2011)

51%

21%

12%

10%
6%

Replacement Homes Rental Homes

Emergency Repairs Heat Pumps Installed

Assistance to First Time Buyers

As part of the County’s commitment to address-
ing housing needs, the Fluvanna/Louisa Housing 
Foundation, a non-profit organization, was estab-
lished by Fluvanna County residents in 1990 to 
improve substandard housing countywide. Since 
its founding, the organization has installed 
plumbing in over 100 homes, assisted many first-
time homebuyers, and performed hundreds of 
emergency repairs.  The organization also man-
ages the Housing Choice voucher program.  

Type of Activity Cost 

Replacement Homes $185,484  

Rental Homes $78,000  

Emergency Repairs $42,300  

Heat Pumps Installed $35,500  

Assistance to First Time Buyers $22,030  

TOTAL $363,314  

Table 13: Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation Expenditures on 
Major Activities (2011) 

Source:  Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation 



23 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

RESIDENTIAL ACTIVITY: FLUVANNA/LOUSIA HOUSING FOUNDATION 

Figure 12: Number of Projects Completed by the Fluvanna/Louisa 

Housing Foundation (2011) 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

First Time Home

Buyer Assistance

Emergency

Repairs

Replacement

Homes

New Ramps

Installed 

Section 8

Vouchers

Type of Project

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
ro

je
ct

s

Project Number  

First Time Home Buyer Assistance 3 

Emergency Repairs 22 

Replacement Homes 2 

New Ramps Installed  7 

Section 8 Vouchers 52 

TOTAL 86 

Table 14: Number of Projects Completed by the Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation (2011) 

Source:  Fluvanna/Louisa Housing Foundation 



24 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Per Fluvanna County’s zoning ordinance (Article 23), site development plans must be submitted whenever there is con-
struction that causes a visible change on the site; “visible change” includes grading, clearing for development, mining, or 
building improvements that change the traffic circulation on the site. Agricultural and forestry activities, as well as the 
construction of single-family homes on individual lots, are exempt from the site plan requirements. Most site plans are 
reviewed administratively; sketch plans that preclude major site plans must be reviewed by the Planning Commission.  
 
 

Image 8: New Construction at Fork Union Military Academy associated with an approved Site Development Plan. 



25 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Community Planning Areas 

Planning Area Project Description Applicant Use Zoning Election District  
Site Plan 

Type 
Status 

Fork Union CPA 
Shelter for JAUNT Pas-

sengers 
JAUNT, Inc. (Peter Ohlms) Commercial B-1 Fork Union Sketch Under Review 

Fork Union CPA Outdoor Storage Yard 
Virginia Electric & Power Com-

pany 
Industrial I-1 Fork Union Preliminary Approved 

Fork Union CPA 
Telecommunications 
Facility at Weber City 

Water Tower 
Wireless Resources Inc. Commercial A-1 Fork Union Minor Approved 

Palmyra CPA 
Site Plan Amendment 

(New Addition) 
Baliff Investments LLC Industrial I-1 Palmyra Amendment Approved 

Palmyra CPA Site Plan Amendment   Frankie & Cheyenne Hackett Commercial BC Cunningham Sketch Approved 

Rivanna CPA 
Site Plan Amendment 

(New Building) 
Aqua Virginia Industrial R-4 Palmyra Minor Under Review 

Rivanna CPA 
Site Plan Amendment 

(New Buildings) 
Effort Baptist Church Institutional A-1 Rivanna Minor Approved 

Zion Crossroads CPA Sales & Ready-Mix Plant Allied Concrete Company Industrial I-1 Columbia Sketch Approved 

Table 15: Site Development Plans within Community Planning Areas (2011) 



26 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Table 16: Site Development Plans outside Community Planning Areas (2011) 

Rural Residential 

Planning Area Project Description Applicant Use Zoning Election District  
Site Plan 

Type 
Status 

Rural Residential New Church Calvary Chapel Fluvanna Institutional A-1 Palmyra Sketch Approved 

Rural Residential 
Telecommunications 

Facility 
Central States Tower II, LLC Commercial A-1 Fork Union Minor Under Review 

Rural Residential Training Center 
Central Virginia Electric Coop-

erative 
Commercial B-1 Palmyra Major PC Approved 

Rural Residential Ice Cream Stand Jim Toms Commercial B-1 Palmyra Minor Approved 

Rural Residential 
Remodel Existing Struc-

ture 
Richard Baier Commercial BC Cunningham Minor Approved 

Rural Residential 
Telecommunications 

Facility 
Verizon Wireless Commercial A-1 Columbia Major Under Review 

Rural Residential 
Telecommunications 

Facility 
US Cellular Commercial A-1 Fork Union Minor Withdrawn 

Rural Preservation Areas 

Planning Area Project Description Applicant Use Zoning Election District  
Site Plan 

Type 
Status 

Rural Preservation    
Reconstruction of Exist-
ing Compressor Station 

Transcontinental Gas Pipeline 
Corporation 

Industrial A-1 Cunningham Minor Under Review 



27 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Table 17: Site Development Plans for Commercial Uses (2011) 

Commercial 

Use Project Description Applicant Planning Area Zoning Election District  Site Plan Type Status 

Commercial Shelter for JAUNT Passengers JAUNT, Inc. (Peter Ohlms) Fork Union CPA B-1 Fork Union Sketch Under Review 

Commercial 
Telecommunications Facility 
at Weber City Water Tower 

Wireless Resources Inc. Fork Union CPA A-1 Fork Union Minor Approved 

Commercial Site Plan Amendment   Frankie & Cheyenne Hackett Palmyra CPA BC Cunningham Sketch Approved 

Commercial Telecommunications Facility Central States Tower II, LLC Rural Residential A-1 Fork Union Minor Under Review 

Commercial Training Center 
Central Virginia Electric Co-

operative 
Rural Residential B-1 Palmyra Major PC Approved 

Commercial Ice Cream Stand Jim Toms Rural Residential B-1 Palmyra Minor Approved 

Commercial Remodel Existing Structure Richard Baier Rural Residential BC Cunningham Minor Approved 

Commercial Telecommunications Facility Verizon Wireless Rural Residential A-1 Columbia Major Under Review 

Commercial Telecommunications Facility US Cellular Rural Residential A-1 Fork Union Minor Withdrawn 



28 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Table 18: Site Development Plans for Industrial and Institutional Uses (2011) 

Industrial 

Use Project Description Applicant Planning Area Zoning Election District  Site Plan Type Status 

Industrial Outdoor Storage Yard 
Virginia Electric & Power 

Company 
Fork Union CPA I-1 Fork Union Preliminary Approved 

Industrial 
Site Plan Amendment (New 

Addition) 
Baliff Investments LLC Palmyra CPA I-1 Palmyra Amendment Approved 

Industrial 
Site Plan Amendment (New 

Building) 
Aqua Virginia Rivanna CPA R-4 Palmyra Minor Under Review 

Industrial Sales & Ready-Mix Plant Allied Concrete Company Zion Crossroads CPA I-1 Columbia Sketch Approved 

Industrial 
Reconstruction of Existing 

Compressor Station 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe-

line Corporation 
Rural Preservation    A-1 Cunningham Minor Under Review 

Institutional  

Use Project Description Applicant Planning Area Zoning Election District  Site Plan Type Status 

Institutional  
Site Plan Amendment (New 

Buildings) 
Effort Baptist Church Rivanna CPA A-1 Rivanna Minor Approved 

Institutional  New Church Calvary Chapel Fluvanna Rural Residential A-1 Palmyra Sketch Approved 



29 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY: SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

Table 19: Site Development Plans by Project Type (2001 - 2011) 

Year Commercial/Retail Industrial Public/Institutional TOTAL 

2001 5 0 4 9 

2002 4 3 1 8 

2003 6 2 2 10 

2004 8 0 4 12 

2005 4 3 0 7 

2006 9 2 1 12 

2007 9 5 6 20 

2008 9 6 2 17 

2009 5 3 2 10 

2010 3 0 4 7 

2011 9 5 2 16 

TOTAL 71 29 28 128 

Figure 13: Site Development Plans by Type (2001 - 2011)

0

2

4

6

8

10

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Si

te
 P

la
n

s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

Commercial/Retail Industrial Public/Institutional



30 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 

Applicant Name 
Applicable Section of 

County Ordinance 
Description of Request 

Fluvanna County 
Portions of Sec. 19-8 and 

Article 22, Chapter 22 
Sidewalks & Setbacks in Com-

mercial Areas 

Fluvanna County Article 27, Chapter 22 
Telecommunications Facilities 

Ordinance 

Fluvanna County Article 14, Chapter 22 
Revisions to the Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) District 

Table 20: Zoning Text Amendments (2011) 

The zoning ordinance establishes regulations governing the use of land. Fluvanna County’s zoning ordinance includes 
eleven different districts and describes the allowable uses permitted in each district. It also establishes design standards 
for new development.  
 
Fluvanna County’s zoning ordinance was first adopted in January 1974. Since that time, the text has been amended to 
reflect the changing needs of the community. Many, but not all, of the zoning text amendments have been initiated by 
Fluvanna County itself.  
 
 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



31 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 

Figure 14: Zoning Text Amendments (2001-2011)

1

2

0

2

4

6

3

4

3

5

3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts

Table 21: Zoning Text Amendments (2001 - 2011)  

Year Number 

2001 1 

2002 2 

2003 0 

2004 2 

2005 4 

2006 6 

2007 3 

2008 4 

2009 3 

2010 5 

2011 3 

TOTAL 33 
Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



32 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS  

Planning Area Applicant Prior Zoning New Zoning Conditional Status Acreage 

Zion Crossroads CPA 
Fluvanna County Board of Su-

pervisors 
I-1 A-1 and I-1 No Approved 23.917 

Rivanna CPA Southern Holdings, LLC B-C 
B-C  

(amend proffers) 
Yes Withdrawn 1.43 

    TOTAL ACREAGE 23.917 

Election District Applicant Prior Zoning New Zoning Conditional Status Acreage 

Columbia 
Fluvanna County Board of Su-

pervisors 
I-1 A-1 and I-1 No Approved 23.917 

Palmyra Southern Holdings, LLC B-C 
B-C  

(amend proffers) 
Yes Withdrawn 1.43 

    TOTAL ACREAGE 23.917 

Table 22: 2011 Zoning Map Amendment Applications by Planning Area 

Table 23: 2011 Zoning Map Amendment Applications by Election District 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 

Zoning map amendments are requests to change the zoning of a particular property. Requested zoning map amend-
ments must be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the Board of Supervisors. While these requests 
generally involve changing the property’s zoning classification from one district to another, they may also involve modi-
fications to conditions imposed upon a property as part of a previous rezoning.  
 
There are currently eleven different zoning districts: A-1 (Agricultural), R-1 (Residential, Limited), R-2 (Residential, Gen-
eral), R-3 (Residential, Planned Community), R-4 (Residential, Limited), B-1 (Business, General), B-C (Business, Conven-
ience), I-1 (Industrial, Limited), I-2 (Industrial, General), Mobile Home Park, and Planned Unit Development. 



33 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS  

Table 24: Zoning Map Amendment Applications by Planning Area (2001-2011) 

Planning Area 
Acres Rezoned 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Columbia ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** 0 0 0 

Fork Union  11 0 0 0 0.34 9.52 7.087 0 0 0 0 

Palmyra  0 0 0 52.1 4.8 52.14 5 0 231.8 0 0 

Rivanna 18.5 116 16.5 42.7 0 11.36 43.74 0 2.89 44.217 1.430 

Scottsville ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** 0 0 0 

Zion Crossroads  2 15.1 27.3 25.2 54.26 67.66 30.87 21.75 0 0 23.92 

Community Subtotal 20.50 131.10 43.80 67.90 54.26 140.68 86.70 21.75 234.72 44.22 25.35 

Primary Residential 0 0 0 0 0 1.45 0 0 * * * 

Rural Residential 0 0 0 43.8 0 0 0 2 5.3 0 0 

Rural Preservation 0 0 0 0 12.95 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 31.50 131.10 43.80 163.90 72.40 142.13 86.70 23.75 240.02 44.22 25.35 
* Primary Residential Planning Area was eliminated. 

** Columbia CPA and Scottsville CPA were adopted as part of the 2009 Comprehensive Plan. 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



34 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS  

Figure 15: Zoning Map Amendment Applications by Planning Area (2001 - 2011) 

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

A
cr

es
 R

ez
o

n
ed

Community Planning Area Primary Residential Planning Area

Rural Residential Planning Area Rural Preservation Planning Area



35 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Within the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance, certain uses may be permitted in select districts with a special use per-
mit. Uses that require a special use permit may be appropriate in the right location, but not throughout the entire zon-
ing district. The Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors review special use permits to ensure that the pro-
posed use: 

Does not change the character and established pattern of development in the surrounding location;  

Is compatible with the uses permitted by-right in the zoning district; and  

Does not adversely affect the use or value of neighboring property. 

The Board of Supervisors may require that the applicants adhere to certain conditions. If the conditions are not met, the 
special use permit may be revoked.  

Image 8: Small home industry in central Fluvanna County that operates under a 
Special Use Permit. 



36 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Project Type Description Applicant Zoning  Election District Planning Area Status 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

Verizon Wireless A-1 Columbia Rural Residential Approved 

Commercial 
Automobile Restora-
tion & Small Engine 

Repair 
Otis Collier A-1 Columbia Rural Residential Approved 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

National Communication 
Towers, LLC 

A-1 Cunningham Rural Residential Approved  

Commercial 
Amendment to Exist-
ing  SUP (Small Home 

Industry) 
Clifford Krammes A-1 Fork Union Rural Residential Approved  

Commercial 
Major Utility Con-

struction 
Central Virginia Electric 

Cooperative 
A-1 Cunningham Rural Preservation  Pending Review 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

Central States Tower II, 
LLC 

A-1 Fork Union Rural Residential Pending Review 

Table 25: Special Use Permit (SUP) Applications by Use (2011) 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



37 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Project Type Description Applicant Zoning  Election District Planning Area Status 

Rural Residential 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

Verizon Wireless A-1 Columbia Rural Residential Approved 

Commercial 
Automobile Restora-
tion & Small Engine 

Repair 
Otis Collier A-1 Columbia Rural Residential Approved 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

National Communication 
Towers, LLC 

A-1 Cunningham Rural Residential Approved  

Commercial 
Amendment to Exist-
ing  SUP (Small Home 

Industry) 
Clifford Krammes A-1 Fork Union Rural Residential  Approved 

Commercial 
Construction of Tele-

communications 
Tower 

Central States Tower II, 
LLC 

A-1 Fork Union Rural Residential Pending Review 

Rural Preservation 

Commercial 
Major Utility Construc-

tion 
Central Virginia Electric 

Cooperative 
A-1 Cunningham Rural Preservation  Pending Review 

Table 26: Special Use Permit (SUP) Applications by Use (2011) 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



38 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Table 27: Special Use Permit (SUP) Applications by Election District (2001 - 2011) 

Year 
Election District 

Columbia Cunningham Fork Union Palmyra Rivanna Total 

2001 1 3 1 2 2 9 

2002 3 7 2 3 0 15 

2003 0 5 1 0 4 10 

2004 2 6 5 8 0 21 

2005 1 1 3 1 0 6 

2006 2 1 0 8 1 12 

2007 1 3 3 3 1 11 

2008 0 0 3 3 0 6 

2009 0 2 1 4 0 7 

2010 2 1 1 3 0 7 

2011 2 2 2 0 0 6 

Total 14 31 22 35 8 110 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



39 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Figure 16: Special Use Permit (SUP) Applications by Election District 

(2001 - 2011)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

er
m

it
s

Columbia Cunningham Fork Union Palmyra Rivanna



40 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: CODE COMPLIANCE 

The Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance describes what uses are permitted in each of the zoning districts and 
how these uses may be conducted. These regulations help promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of Fluvanna County residents by designating the types of buildings, businesses, and activities that are accept-
able in specific zoning districts. The Code Compliance Officer ensures that the regulations set forth in the 
zoning ordinance are enforced consistently and equitably. A wide variety of code issues routinely come to 
the County including subdivision and zoning ordinance violations, inoperative vehicle and junkyard com-
plaints, and other nuisance and miscellaneous complaints.  All complaints are investigated quickly, fairly, and 
thoroughly.  Complainant information is kept confidential, but all complaints that are received, anonymous 
or otherwise, are processed.  
 
In addition to investigating citizen complaints, the Code Compliance Officer completed several other pro-
jects: 

Organized a public campaign to inform citizens and business owners about Fluvanna’s sign ordinance. 
This involved an assessment of visible signage throughout the County. An informational flyer was drafted 
and distributed via the Fluvanna County website, the Fluvanna Chamber of Commerce, and the Fluvanna 
Review and delivered in-person to all businesses; 

Removed illegal signage within road rights-of-way throughout the County; 

Conducted an assessment of roadway trash and debris along the Route 250 corridor;  

Conducted an assessment of existing zoning violations within the Town of Columbia; 

Monitored sound levels within industrial areas; 

Inspected properties with existing Special Use Permits, Zoning Use Permits, and Site Development Plans; 

Accompanied Health Department and Building Department officials on site inspections as requested; and 

Delivered information to Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors members.  

 

 



41 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: CODE COMPLIANCE 

Election District Closed Cases Pending Cases Total  % of Total 

Columbia 1 1 2 9% 

Cunningham 7 0 7 30% 

Fork Union 3 1 4 17% 

Palmyra 5 0 5 22% 

Rivanna 4 1 5 22% 

Total 20 3 23 100% 

Table 28: Code Compliance Cases by Election District (2011) 

Figure 17: Code Compliance Cases by Election District (2011)

2, 9%

7, 30%

4, 17%

5, 22%

5, 22%

Columbia Cunningham Fork Union Palmyra Rivanna



42 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: CODE COMPLIANCE 

Table 29: Code Compliance Cases by Planning Area (2011) 

Planning Area Case Status 

Community Closed Pending Total 

Columbia 0 0 0 

Fork Union 1 0 1 

Palmyra 0 0 0 

Rivanna 4 1 5 

Scottsville 0 0 0 

Zion Crossroads 4 0 4 

Community Planning Area 9 1 10 

Rural Residential 3 1 4 

Rural Preservation 8 1 9 

TOTAL 20 3 23 

Figure 18: Code Compliance Cases by Planning Area (2011)

10, 44%

4, 17%

9, 39%

Community Planning Area Rural Residential Rural Preservation



43 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

The Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) is 
responsible for hearing appeals from 
orders, requirements, decisions, or 
determinations made by the zoning 
administrator or other local govern-
ment staff. The BZA is also responsi-
ble for granting variances from zoning 
regulations. Virginia law requires that 
every locality with a zoning ordinance 
have a BZA.  
 
There are currently five members ap-
pointed to the BZA. The board is 
scheduled to meet monthly, but only 
convenes when an item is requested 
for their consideration.  

Type of Variance 
  

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total 

Reduce Setback 12 3 11 10 13 16 6 10 2 1 0 84 

Other 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 16 

TOTAL 14 3 11 19 15 16 6 13 2 1 0 100 

Table 30: Zoning Variances by Year (2001 - 2011) 

Figure 19: Zoning Variances by Year (2001 - 2011)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
s

Reduce Setback

Other

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



44 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

Table 31: Zoning Variances by Election District (2011) 

Election District 

Type of Variance 

Reduce 
Setback  

Reduce Parking 
Required 

Reduce Public 
Road Frontage 

Other TOTAL 

Columbia 0 0 0 0 0 

Cunningham 0 0 0 0 0 

Fork Union 0 0 0 0 0 

Palmyra 0 0 0 0 0 

Rivanna 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 

Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



45 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: OVERVIEW 

Despite experiencing rapid population growth over the past 
decade, Fluvanna County retains its rural character. To pro-
mote the preservation of its rural lands, Fluvanna County has 
adopted several conservation initiatives. 
 
The Agricultural and Forestal District (AFD) program provides 
an economic incentive for landowners to retain their prop-
erty as open space. Landowners who use their property for 
farming or forestry are eligible, with approval from the Board 
of Supervisors. Properties enrolled in the program quality for 
an agricultural or forestal use-value assessment. While a 
property is enrolled in the AFD program, it may not be devel-
oped to a more intensive use.  
 
The Land Use Valuation Program allows for the reduction of 
real estate taxes on parcels used for qualified agricultural, 
horticultural, forestry, and open space uses. Interested land-
owners must apply to the Commissioner of the Revenue to 
enroll in the program. 
 
Several agencies and organizations hold conservation ease-
ments throughout the County. In 2006, the Board of Supervi-
sors adopted its own Conservation Easements Program; the 
first two conservation easements to be held by Fluvanna 
County were approved in 2007. As of January 2012, 12,488.6 
acres were under conservation easements held by public and 
private entities.  
 Image 9: View of the Rivanna River from the Barber property, which Fluvanna 

County holds a conservation easement upon.  



46 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: AGRICULTURAL & FORESTAL DISTRICTS 

Table 31: Agricultural & Forestal Districts (2011) 

District Name Planning Area Approval Date Review Period Review Date Total Acreage 

Adams Creek Rural Residential 5/16/2001 10 Years May 2011 557.674 

Bourne Tract Rural Preservation 8/4/1999 8 Years March 2015 271.657 

Bowlesville Rural Preservation 3/17/1999 8 Years March 2015 897.99 

Bremo Recess Rural Preservation 1/17/2001 10 Years January 2011 359.67 

Byrd Creek Rural Preservation 7/21/1999 10 Years July 2009 905.569 

Carysbrook Rural Preservation 7/21/1999 10 Years July 2009 1634.74 

Cunningham Acres 
Rural Preservation & 

Residential 
11/17/1999 10 Years November 2009 461.968 

Dobby Creek Rural Residential 1/17/2001 10 Years January 2011 393.16 

Glenarvon Farm Rural Preservation 11/17/1999 10 Years November 2009 1524.78 

Granite Hills Rural Preservation 8/4/1999 10 Years August 2009 771.975 

Kidds Store Rural Preservation 12/15/1999 10 Years December 2009 1854.65 

Lower Bremo Rural Preservation 1/17/2001 10 Years January 2011 800.377 

North 640 Rural Preservation 11/17/1999 10 Years November 2009 2294.14 

Poorhouse Rural Residential 1/19/2000 10 Years January 2010 500.48 

Riverside Rural Preservation 8/7/2002 10 Years August 2012 569.526 

Sheperds Rural Preservation 11/15/2000 10 Years November 2010 703.99 

Shores-Hardware Rural Preservation 1/17/2001 10 Years January 2011 1168.105 

Stage Junction Rural Preservation 6/7/2000 10 Years June 2010 759.934 

Union Mills Rural Preservation 5/15/2002 10 Years May 2012 324.752 

Upper Bremo Rural Preservation 9/20/2000 10 Years September 2010 1851.78 

Total Acreage 18606.917 

% of Total County Acreage in Ag/For Districts 10.13% 
Source:  Dept. of Planning & Community Development 



47 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: AGRICULTURAL & FORESTAL DISTRICTS 

Table 32: Acreage Enrolled in Agricultural & Forestal Districts (2001 - 2011) 

Source: Dept. of Planning & Community Development 

YEAR 
DISTRICTS APPROVED/

NULLIFIED 
ACREAGE ADDED/

WITHDRAWN 

2001 6 3,732 

2002 2 1,470 

2003 0 0 

2004 0 -91 

2005 -3 -5,728 

2006 0 0 

2007 0 0 

2008 0 -24 

2009 0 -1,446 

2010 0 -753 

2011 0 0 

TOTAL 20 -2,840 

Image 10: State Route 6, a Virginia Byway, a few miles east of Scottsville 



48 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: AGRICULTURAL & FORESTAL DISTRICTS 

Figure 20: Agricutural and Forestal Districts Additions & Withdrawals (2001 - 

2011)

3
,7

3
2

1
,4

7
0

0

-5
,7

2
8

0 0

-1
,4

4
6

-7
5

3

0

-9
1

-2
4

-6,000

-4,500

-3,000

-1,500

0

1,500

3,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

A
cr

ea
ge



49 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Figure 21: Acreage Under Land Use Taxation: 2001 - 2011

100,000

105,000

110,000

115,000

120,000

125,000

130,000

135,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Year

A
c
re

a
g

e
PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: LAND USE TAXATION 

Table 33: Acreage Under Land Use Taxation (2001 - 2011) 

Year 
Land Use Type 

Total 
Percentage of Total 

County Acreage Agriculture Forestry Open Space 

2001 32,187 95,282 763 128,232 70% 

2002 31,827 98,604 531 130,962 71% 

2003 32,283 98,342 577 131,202 71% 

2004 31,945 96,608 599 129,152 70% 

2005 30,463 92,520 555 123,538 67% 

2006 29,846 89,978 482 120,306 65% 

2007 31,095 90,098 173 121,366 66% 

2008 31,378 90,739 141 122,258 67% 

2009 28,380 82,620 89 111,089 60% 

2010 28,176 85,134 309 113,619 62% 

2011 27,335 83,981 86 111,402 61% 

  
Total Acreage in 

County 
183,808 

Source:  Commissioner of Revenue 



50 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PRESERVATION PROGRAMS: CONSERVATION EASEMENTS 

Table 34: Conservation Easements Recorded in Fluvanna County in 2011 

Property Name Easement Holder Year Placed Planning Area Acreage 

Cassiday Property VA Outdoors Foundation 2011 Rural Residential 66.0 

Melvin Hughes Property VA Outdoors Foundation 2011 Rural Preservation 167.9 

Palmyra Associates Fluvanna County 2011 Palmyra CPA 25.9 

Terre Haute VA Dept. of Forestry 2011 Rural Preservation 206.3 

     Total (2011) 466.1 

As of January 1, 2012, there are 31 conservation and historic easements in Fluvanna County. These easements protect 
12,488.6 acres, or approximately 6.5% of the County. The Virginia Department of Forestry (VDOT), Virginia Department 
of Historic Resources, Virginia Outdoors Foundation, and Fluvanna County itself hold easements countywide. Most of 
these easements are in the eastern portions of the County, and many are along the Rivanna River (see Appendix C).  

Image 11: View of the Barber Property, one of the first conservation easements accepted by Fluvanna County.  



51 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

APPENDIX A: 2009 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 



52 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

APPENDIX B: MAP OF AGRICULTURAL & FORESTAL DISTRICTS 



53 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

APPENDIX C: MAP OF CONSERVATION EASEMENTS 



54 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

APPENDIX D: STATUS OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STRATEGIES 



55 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



56 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



57 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



58 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



59 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



60 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



61 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



62 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



63 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



64 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



65 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



66 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



67 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



68 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



69 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



70 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



71 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



72 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



73 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



74 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



75 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



76 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



77 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



78 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



79 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



80 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



81 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



82 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



83 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



84 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



85 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



86 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



87 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



88 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



89 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



90 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



91 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



92 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



93 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



94 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



95 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



96 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



97 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



98 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



99 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



100 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



101 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



102 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



103 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



104 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



105 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



106 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



107 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



108 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



109 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



110 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



111 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



112 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



113 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



114 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



115 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



116 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



117 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



118 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



119 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



120 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



121 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



122 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



123 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



124 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



125 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 



126 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

APPENDIX E: LONG-RANGE PLANNING SCHEDULE (2012) 

Project Research/Preparation 
Work Sessions/Draft Revi-

sions 
Planning Commission Public 

Hearing 

Amend Parking and Land-
scaping Sections of the Zon-

ing Ordinance 
January - February January – March April 

Review of the Sign Ordinance February - March March April 

Amend A-1 zoning district, 
create new rural zoning dis-

trict 
Complete May June 

Cash Proffers May – June June July 

TDR/PDR 
(To be discussed with rural 
zoning issues, however, to 
develop specific program 
policies will take additional 
research and discussion) 

June - August August - September October 

Review of Conservation Ease-
ments Program 

October - November November December 



4 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Land Use Planning Areas 

Fluvanna County’s Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2009, continues to influence growth and development decisions.  

The Comprehensive Plan’s designated growth areas cover 11% (20,000 acres) of the County. The growth areas, known as Com-
munity Development Areas, are located near existing population centers and are intended to receive the majority of new devel-
opment.  

Roughly 89% (165,000 acres) of the County are designated as rural areas by the Comprehensive Plan. There are two designa-
tions for rural areas: Rural Residential and Rural Preservation.  

 

Building Permits 

67 building permits for new homes were issued in 2011, a 38.5% decrease from the 109 permits issued in 2010. 

30 building permits for new homes (44.8%) were issued within designated growth areas.  

37 building permits for new homes (55.2%) were issued within rural areas.  

 

Subdivisions 

22 new lots were approved in 2011, a 80.9% decrease from the 115 new lots approved in 2010. 

Six (6), or 27%, of the new lots approved were within designated growth areas. 

Sixteen (16), or 73%, of the new lots approved were within rural areas.  

All sixteen (16) of the new lots approved within rural areas were associated with family subdivisions.  

 

Site Development Plans 

Sixteen (16) site development plans were reviewed in 2011, a 128.6%  increase from the seven (7) plans reviewed in 2010.  

Half of the site development plans reviewed (8) were located within designated growth areas.  

 

Special Use Permits 

Six (6) special use permits were reviewed in 2011, a 14.3% decrease from the seven (7) special use permits reviewed in 2010. 

All of the special use permits reviewed were located outside of designated growth areas.  



5 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Zoning 

Two (2) rezoning applications were considered in 2011. One (1) rezoning application was approved, while the other was with-
drawn. 

Three (3) zoning text amendments were approved in 2011.  

No variances were granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) in 2011, compared to the one (1) variance granted in 2010.  

 

Code Compliance 

Twenty-three (23) complaints were investigated in 2011, a 25.8% decrease from the 31 complaints investigated in 2010. 

Twenty (20) compliances cases were resolved, and three (3) cases are pending resolution.  

 

Land Conservation 

There are 20 Agricultural and Forestal Districts (AFDs) in Fluvanna County, which include 18,606 acres (10% of Fluvanna 
County). AFD enrollment was unchanged in 2011. 

Four (4) new conservation easements, totaling 466.1 acres, were recorded in 2011. These easements are held by the Virginia 
Department of Forestry, the Virginia Outdoors Foundation, and Fluvanna County.  

In 2011, 111,402 acres (61% of Fluvanna County) were enrolled within the Land Use Taxation Program, a reduction of 2,217 
acres from 2010.  

 

Image 2: Newer attached homes in Sycamore Square, a development located within one of the 
designated growth areas. 



35 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

Within the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance, certain uses may be permitted in select districts with a special use per-
mit. Uses that require a special use permit may be appropriate in the right location, but not throughout the entire zon-
ing district. The Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors review special use permits to ensure that the pro-
posed use: 

Does not change the character and established pattern of development in the surrounding location;  

Is compatible with the uses permitted by-right in the zoning district; and  

Does not adversely affect the use or value of neighboring property. 

The Board of Supervisors may require that the applicants adhere to certain conditions. If the conditions are not met, the 
special use permit may be revoked.  

Image 8: Small home industry in central Fluvanna County that operates under a 
Special Use Permit. 



40 

 

FLUVANNA COUNTY: PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING ACTIVITY: CODE COMPLIANCE 

The Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance describes what uses are permitted in each of the zoning districts and 
how these uses may be conducted. These regulations help promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of Fluvanna County residents by designating the types of buildings, businesses, and activities that are accept-
able in specific zoning districts. The Code Compliance Officer ensures that the regulations set forth in the 
zoning ordinance are enforced consistently and equitably. A wide variety of code issues routinely come to 
the County including subdivision and zoning ordinance violations, inoperative vehicle and junkyard com-
plaints, and other nuisance and miscellaneous complaints.  All complaints are investigated quickly, fairly, and 
thoroughly.  Complainant information is kept confidential, but all complaints that are received, anonymous 
or otherwise, are processed.  
 
In addition to investigating citizen complaints, the Code Compliance Officer completed several other pro-
jects: 

Organized a public campaign to inform citizens and business owners about Fluvanna’s sign ordinance. 
This involved an assessment of visible signage throughout the County. An informational flyer was drafted 
and distributed via the Fluvanna County website, the Fluvanna Chamber of Commerce, and the Fluvanna 
Review and delivered in-person to all businesses; 

Removed illegal signage within road rights-of-way throughout the County; 

Conducted an assessment of roadway trash and debris along the Route 250 corridor;  

Conducted an assessment of existing zoning violations within the Town of Columbia; 

Monitored sound levels within industrial areas; 

Inspected properties with existing Special Use Permits, Zoning Use Permits, and Site Development Plans; 

Accompanied Health Department and Building Department officials on site inspections as requested; and 

Delivered information to Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors members.  

 

 




	Agenda - BOS Mtg. March 7, 2012
	Minutes - February 8, 2012 Budget Work Session
	Minutes - February 15, 2012 BOS Mtg.
	Minutes - February 22, 2012 Budget Work Session
	Ratify & Accept VA E-911 Service Board Wireless Education Grant
	Ratify & Accept VA E-911 Service Board PSAP Grant
	FY12 Budget Supplemental Appropriation
	Accounts Payable
	Community Wellness at Carysbrook Fitness Center
	Reappointment Fluvanna Partnership for Aging
	Region's Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Development Activity Report
	Contingency Memo



